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Period

Style

Lot plan

Key dates

Construction

The Grove

At 116 Ashgrove Avenue, Ashgrove, Queensland 4060
Farm house, Villa, Dairy

Federation 1890-1914

Queenslander

L138_RP20498; L137_RP20498; L136_RP20498

Local Heritage Place Since — 30 October 2000
Date of Citation — December 1996

Roof: Corrugated iron;
Walls: Timber
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Criterion for listing (A) Historical; (D) Representative; (E) Aesthetic

Grove Lodge was constructed circa 1895 for dairy farmer Robert Graham when Ashgrove was a predominantly
rural area. The Victorian era villa makes a fine contribution to the streetscape of Ashgrove Avenue and is
significant as evidence of Ashgrove's development as a farming district and elite residential suburb during the
late nineteenth century.

History

This substantial 19th century villa was constructed for Robert Graham, a dairy farmer, circa 1895 when around a
dozen houses existed in what is now Ashgrove Avenue.

The house was built at a time when Ashgrove was predominantly a farming community on the outskirts of
Brisbane with several large homes and country estates belonging to more affluent citizens. Several residential
estates, such as the nearby Grove Estate, were auctioned during the 1880s when mass immigration saw
settlement expand beyond the inner suburbs. However, Ashgrove's distance from the city centre and lack of
public transport meant that these allotments sold gradually.

During the 1890s, Ashgrove Avenue, initially named Serpentine Road and, later, Three Mile Scrub Road, was
inhabited by farmers and middle-class residents, such as clerks and merchants. Chinese market gardens were
situated at the Newmarket end of the road. It was not until the extension of the tramline to Ashgrove in 1924
which prompted the subdivision of large residential estates that Ashgrove became a well populated suburb. Prior
to 1924, the closest tramline to Ashgrove Avenue was the Enoggera Road tramline that was extended to
Newmarket in 1903.

The land on which the house is situated was purchased by Robert Graham in 1871. The property of thirty-seven
acres comprised the whole of portion 651, bounded to the north by Enoggera Creek and to the south and east by
Serpentine Road. Although Robert Graham is listed as a dairyman in Three Mile Scrub Road in 1883-4, records
suggest the house was constructed in 1895-96.

The house, which is known to local residents as The Grove, was Robert Graham's residence until his death in
1915. It was at this time that the section of Ashgrove Avenue fronting the Graham's farm was named Graham
Road. Nearby Yardley Avenue was formerly named Robert St. This suggests that the Grahams were a family of
some standing in the local community.

After the death of Robert Graham in April 1915, more than 12 acres of the property passed to George Graham,
who continued the family's dairying business. Over 24 acres was purchased by Ernest Phares Robinson and
Richard Gailey Jnr who subsequently subdivided and sold their holdings. Between 1918 and 1920, 19 of these
allotments were bought by Edmund Williams, including the land on which the house was situated. Post Office
records suggest that Edmund Williams resided in the house until his death in 1923. Earlier this century, the
house was named Grove Lodge.

In 1924, the house and accompanying six allotments passed to Mrs Mabel Simmonds, wife of Henry Mortimer
Simmonds. After her death in 1932, the property was transferred to her four daughters as tenants-in-common.
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Although the three allotments behind the house were sold in 1954, the remainder of the property stayed in the
possession of the Simmonds family and their descendants until recently when the house was sold.

This elegant and intact residence is significant as evidence of Ashgrove's development as a farming district and
elite residential suburb during the late nineteenth century.

Statement of significance

Relevant assessment criteria

This is a place of local heritage significance and meets one or more of the local heritage criteria under the
Heritage planning scheme policy of the Brisbane City Plan 2014. It is significant because:

Historical
CRITERION A

The place is important in demonstrating the evolution or pattern of the city's or local area’s history
as a late nineteenth century villa built when Ashgrove was still a farming community and as a remnant of the

dairy industry.

Representative
CRITERION D

The place is important in demonstrating the principal characteristics of a particular class or classes of cultural
places

as a fine example of a nineteenth century timber and tin villa.

Aesthetic
CRITERION E

The place is important because of its aesthetic significance

as a Victorian era timber and tin villa that makes a fine contribution to the streetscape of Ashgrove Avenue.
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Note: This citation has been prepared on the basis of evidence available at the time including an external
examination of the building. The statement of significance is a summary of the most culturally important aspects
of the property based on the available evidence, and may be re-assessed if further information becomes
available. The purpose of this citation is to provide an informed evaluation for heritage registration and
information. This does not negate the necessity for a thorough conservation study by a qualified practitioner,
before any action is taken which may affect its heritage significance.

Citation prepared by — Brisbane City Council (page revised June 2022)

il
ol

—A— —
ooz LU B
BRISBANE CITY

Dedicated to a better Brishane

Date of Citation — December 1996 Page 4



